Public Document Pack

Cheshire E@

CouncilZ
Cabinet
Agenda
Date: Monday, 11th April, 2011
Time: 2.00 pm
Venue: Council Chamber, Municipal Buildings, Earle Street, Crewe
CW1 2BJ

The agenda is divided into 2 parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and press. Part
2 items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the reasons indicated on
the agenda and at the foot of each report.

PART 1 - MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS PRESENT
1. Apologies for Absence
2. Declarations of Interest

To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any personal and/or
prejudicial interests in any item on the agenda.

3. Public Speaking Time/Open Session

In accordance with Procedure Rules Nos.11 and 35 a total period of 10 minutes is
allocated for members of the public to address the Committee on any matter relevant
to the work of the Committee.

Individual members of the public may speak for up to 5 minutes but the Chairman will
decide how the period of time allocated for public speaking will be apportioned where
there are a number of speakers.

In order for an informed answer to be given, where a member of the public wishes to
ask a question of a Cabinet Member three clear working days notice must be given
and the question must be submitted in writing. It is not required to give notice of the
intention to make use of public speaking provision but, as a matter of courtesy, a
period of 24 hours notice is encouraged.

Please contact Cherry Foreman on 01270 686463

E-Mail: cherry.foreman@cheshireeast.gov.uk with any apologies or requests for
further information or to give notice of a question to be asked by a member
of the public




Minutes of Previous meeting

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 4 April 2011.
(To follow)

Key Decision 10/11-66 Local Transport Plan - Implementation Plan (Pages 1 -
30)

To approve the Local Transport Implementation Plan following consultation.

Key Decision 10/11-86 Alcohol Harm Reduction and Minimum Unit Pricing
(Pages 31 -42)

To consider an overview of the current position regarding minimum pricing for alcohol
across Cheshire, Warrington and the wider region, and the introduction of a 50p
minimum unit price per unit of alcohol.

Exclusion of the Press and Public

The reports relating to the remaining items on the agenda have been withheld from
public circulation and deposit pursuant to Section 100(B)(2) of the Local Government
Act 1972 on the grounds that the matters may be determined with the press and
public excluded.

The Committee may decide that the press and public be excluded from the meeting
during consideration of the following items pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local
Government Act 1972 on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in Paragraphs 1, 2 or 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local
Government Act 1972 and public interest would not be served in publishing the
information.

PART 2 — MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITHOUT THE PUBLIC AND PRESS
PRESENT

The Regeneration of Congleton Town Centre (Pages 43 - 52)
To consider a report of the Strategic Director - Places.
Managing Workforce Change (Pages 53 - 58)

To consider a report of the Head of Human Resources and Organisational
Development.



Page 1 Agenda Item 5
CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

Date of Meeting: 11 April 2011

Report of: Strategic Director, Places

Subject/Title: Local Transport Plan — Implementation Plan
Portfolio Holder: Clir Jamie Macrae & ClIr Rod Menlove

1.0 Report Summary

1.1 This paper outlines the outcomes of the Local Transport Plan (LTP)
implementation plan consultation and recommended changes to the final
implementation plan, which will be aligned with the Government’'s four year
spending review period (April 2011 to March 2015).

1.2  The implementation plan contains details of the schemes and measures which
will be delivered in order to meet the objectives and priorities for transport, as
set out in the approved 15 year LTP strategy, as well as how we will measure
our progress.

2.0 Decision Requested

2.1 Approve the LTP implementation plan (see Appendix 1).

3.0 Reasons for Recommendations

3.1 The transport priorities reflect wider aspirations for the area contained within
the SCS and Corporate Plan, as well as emerging corporate objectives within
the Local Development Framework (LDF), Economic Development Strategy
and Climate Change Strategy.

3.2  Future investment in highways and transport will be directed towards the
policies and interventions which support the priority themes of “Ensure a
Sustainable Future” and “Create Conditions for Business Growth”.

4.0 Wards Affected

41 Al

5.0 Local Ward Members

51 All

6.0 Policy Implications including - Climate change, Health

6.1  The LTP Strategy is a statutory document that must be prepared by the Council

by April 2011 — the implementation plan forms a supporting part of this
document.



7.0

71

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

9.2

10.0

10.1

10.2

10.3

Page 2

Financial Implications (Authorised by the Borough Treasurer)

Traditionally, LTP funding has been linked to the quality and delivery of the
plan. However, in future the funding settlement will not be linked to
performance and will be significantly reduced.

Legal Implications (Authorised by the Borough Solicitor)

Under the Transport Act 2000, as amended by the Local Transport Act 2008, the
LTP is a statutory document that must be prepared by all local transport
authorities in England. Cheshire East Council is a local transport authority. LTPs
must contain policies for the promotion and encouragement of safe, integrated,
efficient and economic transport to, from and within their area, as well as
proposals for implementation of those policies. The legislation also sets out
provisions for taking into account Government guidance on environment and
climate change, and for making the final plan available for inspection by the
public.

Risk Management

Challenges include the need to effectively manage the transition from current
in-house provision of highway services to an external contractor, whilst
maintaining service provision. Further challenges include the extremely
difficult economic climate, as well as meeting the needs of an increasingly
ageing population and the imperative to adapt and respond to climate
change.

LTP guidance makes clear that the overall quality and delivery of an
authority’s LTP will be taken into account by the DfT in decisions on bids for
challenge funding and/or major projects. It is therefore vital that Cheshire East
is able to demonstrate how the strategy has been translated into delivery
through the implementation plan, in line with local priorities representing the
highest possible value for money.

Background and Options

Cheshire East’s first LTP implementation plan will cover a four year period from
April 2011 until March 2015, in line with the Government’s spending review
period. The implementation plan contains details of the schemes and initiatives
which will be delivered in order to meet the objectives and priorities for
transport set out in the 15 year strategy.

Following approval of the draft implementation plan by Cabinet in January
2011, a four week long public consultation exercise was undertaken,
concluding on the 16" February 2011; this followed on from the extensive
consultation already undertaken for the LTP Strategy.

The implementation plan is structured to reflect the priorities of the strategy —
the emphasis on the two thematic areas of Ensuring a Sustainable Future and
Creating the Conditions for Business Growth.



Page 3

10.4 Within these two priority areas, the consultation response on the measures to
implement and pursue was very favourable. For policy initiatives contained in
‘Ensuring a Sustainable Future’ — 81% agreed, 14.3% neither agreed nor
disagreed, 4.7% disagreed. For policy initiatives to ‘Create Conditions for
Business Growth’ — 79.5% agreed, 17.8% neither agreed nor disagreed, 2.7%
disagreed

10.5 Policy initiatives contained within the other thematic areas were also positively
received with almost 70% of respondents supporting the initiatives proposed in
the draft document.

10.6 There was also overall support for our approach to measuring our performance
and achievements against our implementation plan - 61.4% agreed, 29.8%
neither agreed nor disagreed, 8.8% disagreed.

10.7 A review of the consultation responses and elected Member feedback showed
significant support for the inclusion of actions aimed at targeting improvements
at M6 Junction 17. Accordingly, measures to begin to address this have been
included in the final version of the plan.

10.8 Other feedback received from the consultation has, where possible, also been
reflected in the final implementation plan document. This has included adding
support for promotion and publicity campaigns for cycling in addition to
improving cycling infrastructure.

10.9 Three additional performance indicators have also been added to measure our
performance against the plan. These reflect feedback from the consultation and
also the need to provide information for the Government’s recently announced
single data set. Performance Indicators will be reviewed regularly to ensure that
they are fit for purpose and add value.

10.10 Appendix 1 contains the final implementation plan, highlighted as appropriate to
show where changes have been made from the draft document.

11.0 Overview of Year One and Term One Issues
11.1 The LTP is a statutory document that must be prepared by the Council.
12.0 Access to Information

12.1 The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting
the report writer:

Name: Paul Griffiths
Designation: Principal Transportation Officer
Tel No: 01270 686353 email: paul.griffiths@cheshireeast.gov.uk




Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



Contents
T INEPOAUCHION L 1
2 Initiatives to Ensure a Sustainable Future ... 4
3 Initiatives to Create Conditions for Business Growth ... 9
4 Ongoing Strategy Development ... 14
5 Other Thematic Areas - Initiatives ..., 16
6 Performance Indicators - 2011/15 ... 20

LTP Implementation Plan 2011 - 2015



Contents

LTP Implementation Plan 2011 - 2015



Page 7

This document sets out Cheshire East’s first Local Transport Plan (LTP)
implementation plan. The plan is aligned with the Government’s four year
spending review period (April 2011 to March 2015) and contains details of the
initiatives which will be delivered in order to meet the objectives and priorities
for transport set out in the 15 year LTP strategy.

This implementation plan reflects the feedback from the consultation process
held during January and February 2011.

The thematic priorities of the LTP are “ensure a sustainable future” and “create
conditions for business growth”. Future investment in transport will be directed
towards the policies and interventions which support the priority areas to help
grow the economy and tackle carbon emissions. The priority policies are listed
below.

Ensure a Sustainable Future

Policy S1: Spatial Planning — Seek to minimise the future need to travel
through a strategic approach in the Local Development Framework that
focuses most new development in locations where there is a good range
of housing, jobs, shops and services already accessible by public transport,
cycling and walking.

Policy S3: Public Transport (Service Levels & Reliability) — Work with
passenger transport operators to explore improvements to service levels
and reliability.

Policy S4: Public Transport (Integration & Facilities) — Work with
passenger transport providers to improve public transport integration and
facilities.

Policy S8: Cycling — Work with stakeholders to improve facilities for cycling
so that it is attractive for shorter journeys.

Create Conditions for Business Growth

Policy B1: Strategic Partnerships for Economic Growth — Work with
neighbouring authorities, appropriate regional/sub-regional organisations,
public transport operators and providers to enhance cross-boundary and
strategic investment opportunities in transport.

Policy B2: Enabling Development — Seek to enable appropriate new
development by supporting transport infrastructure, regeneration and/or
behaviour change initiatives that will mitigate the potential impact of
development proposals.

Policy B3: Network Management — Effectively manage the highway
network to reduce the level of delay and provide for the needs of all road
users including pedestrians, cyclists and motorists.

Policy B8: Maintenance — Adopt a robust and efficient approach to
maintenance to minimise deterioration in the highway network and
associated infrastructure assets

LTP Implementation Plan 2011 - 2015 1



Page 8

The following tables include the schemes and initiatives which we will take
forward within each theme to translate the priority policies into action.

LTP Implementation Plan 2011 - 2015



Page 9



Page 10

1noybnouy)
[eloueul Bulobuo
8 Jels pue | Jea\

GL/110C

1noybnouyy
yes Buiobup

Abajens

910D 447

JO juswdojensap

leloueul  Buunp Z1/1102
9 Jes -C R | JesA

SJEEITEEET Rl =N sdiysisuyped
¥ 9MaI1D apnjoul Alunwwoo
[IM - paulwWId}ap 8q 0} ||1S ‘suelisng

SUOIBO0|PaJeDIB[ SAoHBA,  ‘10)08S YleaH

saljloyine

Arepunoq

SS0.0 ‘siojesado

apmybnoliog wodsuel; olgnd

salloyine

Buunoqybiau

‘wea)

apmybnosog bHuiuueld jeneds

piq e | JeaA buunq ‘suonels Aemjel
pue snq je siebuassed 1o} sall|ioe}
0] sjuswanoldwi se [jom se ‘uodsuel)
JO SBpow jualayip Jo uonelbajul

pue uoleulplo-09 ay} Joddns

0} Buipuny jeusaixa 1o} spiq aledald

(YWOV)

saljlIoyINy Ja)sayoue|) Jajeals)

JO UOIjBID0SSY 8y} Sk yons siauped
yym Bunpiom Arepunoq ssolo Buipnjoul
‘siojesado yym anbojeip aanisod

pue uosiel| buiobuo Buunsus ‘wnio4
Jodsuel] 21gnd }se3 aliysayn

ay} ybnouyy siojerado podsuel o1gnd
yum Bunjiom diysiauped ajeyljioe

‘saljlloyine bunoqybiau

Jo asoy} pue sjesodoid 4g Jo
10edWw! 8AIBINWND 8y} JO JUBWISSASSe
ue apnjoul |m sy “(Jodsuely

alignd ‘BuioAo ‘Bujiepn 6-8) wodsuely
JO sapouwl g|geulelsns Aq sadIAIaS

0] SS800e poob aAeYy S8)IS ainsus pue
(4a) yomawel4 Juswdojaaa(] |BO0T
ay} @ouanjjul pue wJojyui 0} sjesodo.d
alis o169)el)S JO SJUBWISSASSe
AjjIqissaooe pue Jodsuely ayeuapun

(semroeq »
uoijeibajui)
yodsuel]
dligqnd €S

Buiuue|d
leneds |s

LTP Implementation Plan 2011 - 2015



Page 11

‘(seys Juswdojansp Buisnoy
pue juswAojdwa mau "6°8) puewap
|lennuajod mau Jo uonesussuod e (Aypqel 9y

aq 01 Aj@y1| sI 818y} alaym Alejnoied 9 S|9AdT

GL/LLOZ ‘o|qIssod se aslidiajus |eloJawwod 99IAIDG)

1noybnouy) wea)} buiuueld yonw se abeinoous pue ajejljioe;  uodsueud)

yers Buiobup apmybnoiog  ‘siojesado sng 0} siojelado snqg Yyum A|asojo JIo0AN alqnd ¥S

"amal) ul Ajenoiued ‘suoingujuod

Jadojanap pue sanunyuoddo Buipuny

wes}  [eulayxa Ybnouy} JuswiSaAUl 81ND8S
Juswdojansp 0} diystauped ul yJom pue suonels

GL/LLOZ MO|SWIIAA PUB 2lLOU02d Kemjies jse3 anysayo je papasu
[eloueul noybnoiyy amald uo snooy Jejnoied ‘saluedwoo aJe jey) sjuswaroidwi Ajpuapl 0}
9 Jels Buiobup yum ‘epmybnolog Bunesado uies]  saiuedwoos Buneiado uiely yum YIoAN

‘'sqny Jodsuely
21lgnd je Bupyied 81942 Jo uoisinoid

sdiysiauyped pue sawi} abueyalaiul aonpal

Alunwwod 0} suoneolyipow ajgelawi} Buipnjoul

SL/1L02 pue sdnoib ‘siojesado |iel pue snqg yium uodsuely

noybnouy) Jasn ‘siojelado JO sapow usam}aq uonelbayul

Jers Buiobup apmybnoiog wodsuel; olgnd anoldwi 01 saniunyoddo aio|dx3

‘pun uodsuel |
9|geuIe}SNS |B20T padunouue Ajjuadsal
S,JUBWUIBA0S) 8y} Jo} paledald aq |Im

LTP Implementation Plan 2011 - 2015



Page 12

[IouUNoD

SL/LLOZ }S9M 24IYSayD

1noybBnouyy ‘lounoD umo|

uels BuloBuo  YoIMSIPPIN ‘Yoegpues YoIMa|PPI

sdiysisuyed
Ajlunwwod
‘sdnoub Jasn

lles ‘(DY) ‘NoD
€102 Alquiassy ys|apn
Bels Ipun Buobuo apimybnoiog ‘VYINOV ‘Lid

|eloueul

QUEIS ZL/L1L0Z - | JesA spmybBnoiog  siojesado sng

GL/LLoc
inoybnouyy seale |einJ ul
yes Buiobup Apenoiued ‘epimmybnolog  wes) bBuluue|d

aye} 0] saniunuoddo Bulpuny yees pue
siebuassed 03 aul| Aem|iel yoIMyLoN
0} yoegpues ay} jo buiuado-al ay)
Woddns 0} [1IoUN0D UMO] YDIMB|PPIA
Buipnjoul siauped yjm YIopn

'€102 Ul (Tedswe+t

UJBYUON Ajjuaiing) asiyouel{ UIsyuoN
ay) pue Z10z Ul (suled] uibiip
Ajjuaiing) asiyouel 1Se0?) 1Sa\N ay}
- |emaual 1o} anp aJe }se] alysay)
Buinies syjuswaalbe asiyouel) uiew
OM} 8y "suoneoyoads adlAIes |iel
aouanul 0} sdnolb Aqqoj JuswisaAul
[led pue siauped o168)e)s Yim YJOAA

‘ABsjenis 417 8ys uiyum

Jodsuedy Joy sanoud oibajel)s Jo
JuswWBAaIYoe 8y} 0} 8)NLIUOD 0} JBp.IO
Ul S8JIAJISS Ul Judwi)saAul asilond
[IM BLIB)IO paulwld)}ap A||eo0T
"'S82IAIBS SN pauoddns ul Jusw]SaAUl
aulwis)ep 03 eld)Io mau dojaaa(g

‘seale |ednl ul Aenoied ‘suonn|os
Jodsuel) 21ignd aAneAouul aiojdxe
0] suonnqLuod Jadojanap asiinn

LTP Implementation Plan 2011 - 2015



Page 13

H#e1s

[eloueul
B Jels

H#e1s

‘Aousioly3 ABisug g ABojouyoa| S pue bunyiepn LS ‘((Bunayoll ¥ salteq) wodsuel] o1gnd 9s ‘(Bunaxiep
Q uonewJoju|) Wodsuel] 21gnd GS ‘uoneldepy g uonebiip - abuey) ayewiD S Jo seale Ao1jod 8y} UIYIM MO||B S82JN0Sal SB
pajuswaldwi aq [|IM 8way} ,8iNjN4 8|qeule}sng e ainsug, 8y} UIY}IM SSAIjBIIUI pUB SBWBYIS Jaylun4 :saldljod Aiejuswajdwo)

GL/LLoc
1noybnouy)

Buiobup

GL/Loc
1noybnouayy

Buiobup

GL/LLoc
1noybnoiy)

Buiobup

apmybnolog

apimybnolog

apmybnoliog

sueljsng
‘siapinold
ERIIVEIS

‘wes) buluue|d

J10}08s yjjeay
‘wnio4 BulpAn
}se3 aliysayo
‘suelysng

10}08s yjeay
‘wnio4 BulpAn
Iseg aJysayo
‘suelisng

'suoljeo0| JuswAojdwa pue 82IAI8S
‘saf)|ioe} AJUNWWOD ‘S8JjUdd UMO)

ul sanjioey) buljoAo o) ssedoe Jsjealb
apinoad 03 ssadoud Buluue|d ayy
ybnouy} suoinguiuoo 1adojanap 399S

"subredwed Ajdiiqnd pue uonowoid
apnjour os[e 03 pue buiubis aynou
anosdwi ‘pue S8)N0J peOU-J0 pue saue|
8[9A0 peoJ-uo alow ‘spuswanocidu
ajnoJ pue uonoun( Buipnjoul
‘ainjonaiseljul BuljoAo anoiduwi

0} (pung Jodsuel] ajgeule}sng [Bo07
‘6-9) Buipuny |eulaxa 4o} spiq aledald

aJl| AepAians jo ued

Se uayo alow 89Ad 0} sjdoad aiow
abeinooua pue ssIjoAd 10} sanioe) ay)
0} sjuawaAoidwi ajowold 0} wnio
BuipAo 1se3 alysay) sy} pModdng

‘obe)s juswdojanrsp
1Xau 8y} ybnoly) swayos siy)

Buijohko gs

LTP Implementation Plan 2011 - 2015






Page 15

GL/LL0C

[eloueul 4 1noybnoayy
B Jeis BuiobuQ
GL/11L0¢C

1noybnoayy

yeis Buiobup

eig  pawuJiuod aq of

GL/1Loc
1noybnouy)

yeis Buiobup

ybnoliog
9y} JO YLON

apimybnoiog

pJojsinuyy

apimybnouog

Aouaby
skemybiH ‘YINOV

J1dINO pue
d’irey 3iomieN

diysiauped
By PIOJSINUY
‘Aouaby sAemybiH

d31 uoiburepp
® 2Jlysay)d

SO)IS apIy B Yied Alejnoiued ‘ybnolog sy Jo
ypou ayy ul saniunyoddo ulelj-wel Jo salpnis

Aiqisesy 1no Aued o} (VDY) santoyiny
J8)Sayoue|) Jajeals) JO UolBo0SSY UM MJOAN

‘ised
alIysay) SS0Joe SadIAIBS ulel) Jo Ajljigerial
pue Aouanbaly ‘paads ayj ul sjuswaroidwil
300jun pue J8)sayoue| |esjuad ul Ajoeded

aseajal ||IM gny UJIBYHON 8y "awayos
juswanoidwi Ayoeded gnH uIBYUON ay}

pue [1ey paadg ybiH ybnoiyy AlAgosuuod el
Buinoadwi Joy sjesodoud ul ebebus pue poddng

‘a|qissod

JaA3IB8UM pajelodiodul pue palapisuod

ale sjuspisal |e20| JO SUIBOU0D 8y} Buunsua
‘awayas apelbdn Aemabeles |enp uspmog
0] pJoJSINUY 9GGY 8y} JaAllep 0} Aouaby
sAemybiH ay) yum sdiysiaupied ul YIOAA

‘'sdiystauped

Awouo9os JojsIA pue Aouaby sAemybiH

‘ley yJomiaN ‘wodany Jaisayouely ‘sanloyine
Bulunoqybiau Buipnjoul - Yymolb 21wouoos
aje}|ioey} 0} Jodsued) ul sjuswaAosdw
21n23s 0} (d37) diysiauped asudiajug

|20 8y3 ybnouyy siauned o16ajes yim MIoAA

ymoIo
olwou093 10}

sdiysiaulied
oibajens 19

LTP Implementation Plan 2011 - 2015



Page 16

H#els

[eloueul
® 4el1s

H#els

H#els

BuIpung)

Z Jeg (uonnjos

Sjuabe buibeuew)

1B SaNSSI AJaJes pue AJloeded DUIAjOSal

Youo v

poaIbe) | 1eax

LLOC - | JesA

GL/LLoc
1noybnoayy

Buiobup

LLOC - | JesA

UOEGPUES

amal)

apimybnoiog

amal)
apnjoul [|Im

- paulw.a)ep
aq 0}

ll}s suoneoso]
snouep

AoUSDY AEMUDIH

wea)
Buiuueld ‘11

siadojansp
‘wes) |0Jjuo2d
Juswdojanap
Aemybiy

‘wea) buluue|d

Alunwwod
ssauisng ‘wea)
juswdojansp
2lWOU09]

0] UONN|OS paJiajaid & 9aIbE 0] SIad0[oAsp
PUE ADUSDY SAEBMUDIH U7 UIIM SO

"aMal) ul saiiunuoddo

Juswdo|aAap Mau Yo0jun ||IM YdIym

peOy JuI usals) amald) Joj Buipuny apiroid 0}
aseo ssauisng ay} dojoasp 0} (11Q) podsuel |
Jo} Juswyedaq 8y} Yjim 3Jom 0} anuijuod)

"SUOISSIWS U0QgJed 8onpal 0} JapJo Ul
sjuswdojonap mau ablie| Ul S3[DIYaA O11309|8
J0 puqgAy Joj sjuiod Buibieyosas pue uodsueln
a1ignd ‘BuljoAo ‘Bunyjem 1oy uoisinoid aieyijioe
‘uoisinoid Jodsued) oibajels pue [e20| Yioq
0] sjuswaAoldwi s8|geus Jey} suolNgLUjuod
Jadojanap,paseqg Jiie], o0} yoeoidde

mau e dojonap 0} wea) buluue|d sy} yum MJOopN

"SUOISSIWS UogJeo
2onpaJ pue ymmolb oiwouods uoddns 0} pun4
Jodsuel] s|geule}sng |20 SJUBWUIBAOL)
ay} Jo} piq e dojensp 0] siauped yim JJOAA

VT
Ao ay) Ul yJomau peol o16ajens syl wod)

juswdojanaq
Buiiqeu3 zg

LTP Implementation Plan 2011 - 2015

10



Page 17

#eis

#e1s

H#els

GL/LLoc
1noybnouy)

Buiobup

GL/LLoc
1noybnoayy

Buiobup

GL/roc
1noybnouy)

Buiobup

Juswiaalibe

puE yoeoidde

apimybnoiog

apimybnoiog

apimybnouog

a7lj10d
aJlysayn ‘Uspiroid
aoIM8s AemybiH

Japinoud

aoIAI8s AemybiH
‘Aouabe sAemybiH
‘saloyine
BunoqybiaN

‘wes)
Buiuue|d ‘saipoq
Buipunj ‘sioumo

pue| ‘siadojana

"Joesu0d Aemybiy mau ayj ybnoay)

uondnusip }Jomjau asiwiulw 0} Juswabeuew
JUSAS Jolew / }JOMPEOJ JO UOI}BUIPIO-02
anosdwi pue uonelsado uonoun( ul selouBIoIYS
pue sjuawanoidwi Jo AloAIBp 8y} JOJIUO

‘abueyo ajewlo 1o} buliedaid

pue Bumub Jayuim Jo Aousioiys ay) Buimainal
SE ||]oM SE ‘S8}noJ Jajnwwod pue ybial) jo
Juswabeuew ajnol, Alepunog-ssoio apnjoul
[IM SIy] "9|qissod se AjaAijoaye se pasn

s Josse ay} bulinsua pue diyel) JO JUsWSAOW
JuBI0IYd By} 81n28s 0} pabeuew aq ||IM }JOM}aU
Aemybiy ayy moy Buiuijno ‘ue|d Juswabeuely
YIOMIBN 8y} JO uonejuswaldwi JOJIUON|

‘ealy JuswdojaAaq pIalsaode\ yinos ay)
dn uado 0} £ZGY pue 9gGY dy} usamiaq yul|
Aemybiy ajgeins e yum buoje ‘ssedAg uisise]
YOIMS|PPIIAl JO UoISIA0Id 8y} pue Jnogepunoy
usal) amal) Null Asjwoyneg 0Oy ay} uo
suswanoidwi Ayoeded Buipnjoul ‘seniunuoddo
JuswdojsAap Mau SHO0|un jey} ainjonliseljul
Jayuny JaAlap 0} siauped yum YIopA

“UORN|OS SIG}

S1odo[oAap

JUswe|dwI 0] SJeuned yiim Abajens buipun]

07 Balv 10}

poaibe ue dojoAaq 9N @yl JO /| uonounp

juawabeue
)I0M}ON €9

11

LTP Implementation Plan 2011 - 2015



Page 18

"uoneAouu| ssauisng /g ‘buniied 9g ‘ybiai4 gg ‘wuswaroidw] yIoMeN g 1o seale Aoljod ay) UIyum Moje seainosal se pajuswajdul

aq ||IM away) ,YyIMols) ssauisng 1o} SUoIpuo) ajeal), syl UIYIM SaAleNIuUl pue sewayos Jaylun4 :saioljod Alejuswajdwor

[eloueuly
® Jel1S

|eloueul
B Jeis

[eloueul
® He1s

GL/LLloC
1noybnoayy

Buiobup

GL/1L0C
1noybnoay)

Buiobup

GL/LLoc
1noybnouy)

Buiobup

apimybnoiog

apimybnouog

apimybnouog

Japinoud
aoInIes AemybiH

Japinoid
92IAI8S AemybiH

Japinoid ao1AI8s
AemybiH ‘jrey
YJoMlaN ‘wea)

Buluue|d

‘s|ella)ew pue salbojouyos)

aAlleAouUl JO asn 8y} ybnouyy siiedal

peou Aleijodwa) Jo uedsayl pue Ayjigelnp
By} 8Sealoul pue s}098)9p Ylomiau Aemybiy
Buliedas o0} yoeoiadde ayj ul sa1ouaIdIYyd
alnsua 0} 10eJju00 Aemybiy mau ay) JOHUON

‘yoeousdde aAnoeal

B Uey} Jayjel agueusjulew aAlejuanald

JO 8Sh 9AI1108)8 }SOW 8y} J8pISU0I 0}
yoeolidde aj040 aj1| ,|0ym, e dojars(g “ylomiau
Aemybly s,ybnoiog ay) ssoioe asueusjuiew
|[euonesado pue [einjonJ)s Ul JUSWI)ISaAUI
asnoud pue (dINVYL) ueld uswabeuey
1ossy Jodsueld| ay) Juswa|dwi 0} 10esU0D
Aemybiy mau ay} Jo AlaAlap ay) JOHUON

"sa)is ysH ybiy

0] 8s0J0 ale s|esodoid aiaym suonngLIuod
Jadojanap sjendosdde yaag "eale aul|

|led 8y} Buusius o1jel; peod Jo ysu ybiy e Auieo
YoIYM S8}IS UOISINDUI [Ied PBO. B YIOM |elpawal
JO swuwelboud ayj Jo uoneyuswa|dwi JOJUOI

aoueuajuIe\
8d

LTP Implementation Plan 2011 - 2015

12






Page 20

4 Ongoing Strategy Development

#els

S921N0SY

cl/iioc
-C® | JesA

uonejuawa|duwi
JO Jed)

apimybnoiog

uoieoso-] Ajuond

sdnoig
Ajlunwwon
‘s|1ouno)
ysued Q umo|
‘sdiysiauped
ealy |eoo7

siauped
Kianljag

‘|oA8] |BOO|
e Je saloljod spimybnolog
104disjul 0) sanss|
Jodsuel) Uo uoISSnoSIp
oi10ads Aj|eoo| ayeuspun
pue saioud |eoo| uleuaose
0} ‘ssaooid 41 8yl

ypm uonounfuod ul ‘sumoy
10} syJomawel) podsuely

JO sales e dojanaq

aApEnRIu|

SUMO] L1

LTP Implementation Plan 2011 - 2015

14






Page 22

5 Other Thematic Areas - Initiatives

sdnoug

Areyunjop "Jeo e 0}
pue | ssa20e JnoyjIm asoy) pue sjdoad
Alunwwo) BunoA ‘ejdoad Japj|o ‘seale
‘s[louno) [ednu ul Buial ajdoad Buipnjoul
ysued | ‘seale pue sdno.b pabejueapesip
Y UMO| uo snooy Jenoied e yym
‘sdV $S900E 0} JaIsed sadINIas Ady S92IAIDS JO
GL/1102 ‘siopinold | yew 0} saljlunwwod |eoo] pue | AMjIqISS929Y
geis | noybnouyy buiobup apimmybnoiog 9oINI8S | suonesiueblo Jauped yjm YIoAA r40)
sdnolg
Atejunjop %
Ajunwwon
‘s[louno) "SalIUNWIWOD
ysued [ednu ui Aenoiued ‘(saolnles
Q UMO| JO UOIIN|OASP ‘SBWBYIS aleys
‘sdv Jed Ajlunwwoo “6°8) uoisinoid
S1/1102 ‘siopinoud 92IAJ8S pue Jodsuel) Joj
yeis | mnoybnouayy buiobup apimybnoiog 92IAIBS | SeAnenul pal-Alunwwod yoddng
"ybno.oq sy} SSOIO. SaNIUNLILIOD
sJo[|1ouno) [BO0] pUB SI0|[I9UN0D
‘(sdv) Aq payiuspi ainjonuyselul
sdiysieuped | Jodsuel; |eo0O| 0] sjuswaAosdwl
[eloueul R Je1S LLOZ - | JesA apmybnolog | ealy |00 a|eos-||lews uswajdw| | AJlunwwo) L9

S$921N0SY

uonejuswajdw|
JO Jea)

Ajong uoneso

siauped
Kianljag

aApenRIu|

LTP Implementation Plan 2011 - 2015

16



Page 23

5 Other Thematic Areas - Initiatives

sdnoub Jasn
‘sdnolb
Arejun|on ‘'syiedmo] |eued se yons
Ajlunwwod | ainjonsseljul usalb pue sajnol
‘slaumopue 3|qeure)sns Aqg (suoneunsap | ainjonijseudju|
‘WNJO4 | WSLINO} pue SaJjudd AjJlunwwod usali9 B
GL/1L02 SS800Y ‘sjooyos ‘6°9) saoinias Aay 0] | Aepp Jo sybiry
[eloueuld % yeis | noybnouy) Buiobup apimybnoiog [B00T | SHul| 81e810 pue aAoJdwi 0) ¥9aS olqnd €H
sdnoub Jesn
‘sdnoub
Aiejunjon SaIAIOY
pue 'safjiAoe Ayyesy AyyesH
Ajunwwoo pue suondo |aAel} BAlJOE Se Q |9AeL]
GL/1L02 ‘saouabe | Buipu asioy pue BulpAd ‘Bupjjiem 9AI)OY jJO
yeis | mnoybnouayy buiobup apmybnolog yjlesH | ©ajowoud o} diysisuped ul yIop\ | uonpowold ZH
‘'saAjoslgo Aoijod
Japeouq spuoddns pue Asuow 10}
slojesado | an|eA sIayo }I 8INSUS 0} BLIBIID
yeis LLOZ - | JesA apimybnolog sng | [9AeJ] snq AJeuoISSaoU0D MBINSY
siojelsado ||e 40}
yodsuelsy | ssa29e ajowoud 0} (81e9d |eros
alignd | ynpe "6-8) sdnoib pabejueapesip
GL/1L02 ‘slapinoid 1e pajabie) aoinpe Buluueld e
Jeis | noybnouy) buiobup apmybnolog @ aied |eloos Asuinol pasijeuosiad apinold | 10} SS922Y €9

S$921N0SAY

uonejuswajdwy
JO Jea)

Ajuoud uonesoT

siauped
Kianljag

aApenRIu|

17

LTP Implementation Plan 2011 - 2015



5 Other Thematic Areas - Initiatives

leloueuld @ Jels

$92IN0SaYy

GL/110¢
noybnouyy buiobup

uolnjejuawa|duwy
JO Jea)

apimybnoiog

Ajong uoneson

saljloyine
Buunoqybisu
‘anosay
CRRIE
allysayd
‘921|0d
allysayd
‘Jopino.d
9OINIBS
AemybiH

siaujied
INEYNTETq]

‘'sJauped

yjIm uonounfuod ul - JuswadIoud
pue Bulissuibus ‘Bululely

¥ UOIJeONpa - sainseaw Ajojes
peo. Jo AlaAlap 8y} JOJUON

aAneniu|

Kyojeg peoy
8H ‘ZH ‘9H

LTP Implementation Plan 2011 - 2015

18






Page 26

6 Performance Indicators - 2011/15

(Aupgeley
R S|9A9T 92IAI8G) Lodsuel] 2lignd #S

S92IAI9S 9AISUOdsal puewap
pauoddns |1ouno) uo spew sAauinol Jo JaquinN

uodsuel| aAisuodsay
puewa( uo apew sduj Jo JSqUINN

(Aungelsy
0 S|9A9T 92IAI8S) Wodsuel] 2lignd #S

a|gelA AjleloJswwod
aw098( Jey] seolAIes snq paloddns Jo o,

S90INISS
sng Jo AJllIqeIA [erosswwo)

(semoed
© uonjelbaju|) podsuel] olgnd €S

1seg aliysay) Ul suonels Aemjiel 1e ||e00

abeuoljed |iey

S30IAIBS

SNy JUanbaJ] JOJ 8w DUNIEM SS80Xa SDBIoAY

Ajifenjoung sng

Aenjoung sng

(Aupgeley
0 S|9A9T 92IAIBS) Wodsuel] 2lgnd #S

(semoed
© uonelbaju|) podsuel] olgnd €S

yurq Adgjod

(Aenung [enuuy)
S82IAISS SN |B0| Y}IM UOIIOBSIIES ||BJOAO 21|gNd

9oUBWLIOLId JO dINSEa|

uonoejsnes alignd - 82IAI8S sng

Jojesipuj pasodoud

ainjn4 ajqeuie}sng e ainsug

"uodal

aouewJopad |enuuy 1sdiy 8y ul paysiignd aq |im sjabie] pue auljeseg ay) pue Jeak yoes |udy ul Ajjenuue 1o Ajanenb Jayiie aq
[im Buiioday “Japinoad ao1nias Aemybiy mau ay) 10y padojaAap 8soy} apn|oul ||IM SIO}BJIPUI [BUOIIPPY “SUMO} 0} SHIOMBWIE)
Wodsuely Buidojansp Jo sseo0id ay) Jo ped se palapisuod aq ||IMm SJ0jedlpul [Boo| djeledag “siseq apim ybnoliog e uo pajdope

aq ||IM sainseaw aduewlopad Buimoljo) ay) ‘uejd uoneluswadwi 417 @y} Jo 10edwi pue AlaAljap 8y} Jojuow 0} 1apJo Uj 1’9

LTP Implementation Plan 2011 - 2015

20



Page 27

6 Performance Indicators - 2011/15

aoueusUel\ 89

PaJapISU0D 8q P|NOYS 8ouUBUSUIBW [RINIONJS Blaym sAemabelied
peolJ ssejo 9 pue g Jo uoniodoid ay) Jo uoneoipul ue sapiAcid

‘0 ® g SSe|Q - uoIpuo) peoy

aoueusulel\ 89

(g9 Jojeolpu| |euoneN Jaw.oy) Jasse skemybiy ay jo

a]e]s ay) Jo Jojealpul Juediubis e si Siy| "SYuow Z| 1Xau ay) JaAo
paJapISuod 8g pP|NOYS adueUdjUBW [BINJONIS d1aym Aemabellied
peo. |ediouud jo uoiuodoud syj Jo uoiedIpUl UB SBPIAOI

speoJ [edidulld - UOIIPUO)) Peoy

Juswabeue|\ YJIOM}aN €9

PI2LSBI00B\ PUB aMalD)
ul Aenoiued ‘sjaAg| oiyed) ainseaw 0} ejep Buliojiuow ajebalbby

sealy ueqin A8y Ul S|joAeT olyel|

HCOEOOMCM_\/_ YJOM]ON €9

(ABAIng |enuuy) Juswabeuel) YJoMmpeoy YlM uonjoeisies oljgnd

Juswabeue
JIOMPEOY UM uoRoejsiies dlignd

yurq Adgjod

90UBWLIONAd JO dINSEI

YIMoU5) ssaulisng 10} SUOI}pUo?) ajeald

Co_awwmcoo

Jojesipuj pasodo.d

(ABAIng [enuuy) sanijioey
Buipho gs pue s8)noJ 9]0A0 YlIM UOoINjoBISIIES ||BJBAO 21|IgNd

saljlloe4 pue saInoy ajokD

BUIPAD 8S BUIUEIL 8PAD
(Aungeliey (Aening [enuuy) (epry-e-lelq "6'8) podsues ]
Q S|9A87 92IAI8S) Wodsuel] dlgnd S Ajlunwwo) yum uonoejsijes ||eJaAo dlignd | uonoejsies wodsuel] Ajunwiwo)

yui Aoaijod 99UBWLIOLIAd JO dINSEI

Jojesipuj pasodoud

21

LTP Implementation Plan 2011 - 2015



Page 28

6 Performance Indicators - 2011/15

IV 40J SS823Y €D

AaAins uoluido 21gnd jenuuy

(sangesig
ypm ajdoayd) saoinag Aayf 0} SS809Y JO ase]

$90IAISS JO A)[IqISS00Y 20

Aanins uoluido o1ignd jenuuy

(s1doad 1Y) s921MI8S A8y 0] SS820Y JO 8se]

Alunwwo) LD

1seg aJsysayo noybnouyy
uonelado ul Sswayds Jed AJunwiwod Jo JaquinN

sowayog Je) Ajunwwo) Jo Ajljige|ieAy

Alunwwod LD

(AeAIng |enuuy) podsued)
Ajunwwoo jo Ayjigejieae ayy jo uondaoisad dlgnd

Wodsuel] Ajunwwo) Jo Ajjigeieay

Alunwwo) 1o

yurq Aojjod

9Jduew.ioliad JO ainsesN

Jeak |eloueuly yoes ul 186png pajeoo)e Jo puads %,

Sawiayog ainjonaiselu| [eoo Jo AlsAleq

Jojesipuj pasodo.d

saljiunwwo) Buouyg ainynN

uonipuod
aoueualuIel\ 89 (Aening jenuuy) aoueusjuiew Aemybiy yum uonoejsijes olgnd AemybiH jo uondaaiad 211gnd
paJapIsSu0d YIOM}SN

aoueuaUIRN 8F

8¢ p|noYs aoueUSjUIBW [BINJONIS BJBUM PEOJ PBNJISSEIOUN JO % PEOY PaLISSE[oUN - UOKIPUOD PEOY

aoueuauIe\ 8F

(ABAIns Mlomiau Aemioo) [euoieu Map) “SYJUOW Z | 1Xau ay} JoA0
paJapISU0d 8q p|NOYS 8dUBUS)UIBW [BINJONJIS BI8YM }SBT alIysay)

ul sAkemjooy Azepuooas pue Alewud JO UOIIPUOD BY) SBINSEI|\ sAemjo04 Jo Ajjenp

yurq Adgjod

(69| J01ED1PU| |RUONEN JBWLIO}) Josse Aemybiy ay) Jo
1e)s ay) Jo Jojedipul Jueoylubis e Si SIYy] "SYjuow g | 1Xau ayj J8AO

92UBWLIOLIAd JO SINSE3| Jojeoipu| pasodo.d

LTP Implementation Plan 2011 - 2015

22



6 Performance Indicators - 2011/15

23

LTP Implementation Plan 2011 - 2015

Asjes peoy gH ‘/ZH ‘OH

(/1 101€01pU| [RUONHEN JBWJIO}) Lodsuel] Jo) Juswiiedaq
ay) wouy aduepinb mau 0} Joalgns ejep 199]|00 0} 8NuUUOD

paJn(ul
Ajsnouas Jo pa||iy ajdoad jo JequinN

uoneonp3 0} [9Ael] LA

yuiq Aagjod

(861 J0)e2IpU| [BUOHEN JBULIOY)
pasn Ajjensn |9AeJ} JO apow - [ooyos 0} Buljjaaely uaipjiyd

aoueRWIOAd JO aInSea

|[ooyos 0} Asuinol 1oy |9ABI} JO BPOIN

Jojesipuj pasodoud

sJiojesipu] Aoy JoY10



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 31 Agenda ltem 6

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL
REPORT TO: CABINET

Date of Meeting: 11 April 2011

Report of: Head of Health and Wellbeing

Subject/Title: Alcohol Harm Reduction and Minimum Unit Pricing
Portfolio Holder: Clir Andrew Knowles

1.0 Report Summary

1.1 The purpose of this paper is to provide an overview of the current
position regarding minimum pricing for alcohol across Cheshire and
Warrington and the wider region.

1.2  This paper makes the recommendation that progress towards reducing
alcohol related harm would be accelerated by formally supporting (and
working with others to advocate) the introduction of a 50p minimum
price per unit of alcohol. The introduction of a local bylaw, or national
legislation, is examined.

1.3 Itis recognised that this is one aspect of any comprehensive plan to
reduce alcohol harm in our communities.

2.0 Decision Requested

2.1 Note the findings outlined in this paper and acknowledge the clinical
support for minimum unit pricing.

2.2 Endorse the introduction of a minimum price of 50p per unit across
Cheshire and Warrington.

2.3 Endorse the continued pursuit of a byelaw supported by as many local
authorities as possible, as well as active support and pursuit of the
enactment of national legislation to implement a minimum unit price for
alcohol, as part of a wider strategy to tackle alcohol harm.

3.0 Reasons for Recommendations

3.1 To reduce the negative impacts of alcohol harm, including the cost to people’s
health, the financial cost to the health system, alcohol related anti social
behaviour and criminal activity.

4.0 Wards Affected

41 Al



5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

71

8.0

8.1

8.2

8.3

Page 32

Local Ward Members
All

Policy Implications including — Carbon reduction
- Health

Alcohol is one of the leading causes of ill health amongst our local population.
Around one third of our population are drinking at levels above the
recommended limits. The health impacts of alcohol misuse include an
increased use of general practice consultations, increased attendance at A&E,
ambulance call outs, out patient and hospital admissions. The chronic effects of
alcohol use include cirrhosis, coronary heart disease cancer and stroke. The
letter of support attached as Appendix A is countersigned by a number of key
clinicians.

Financial Implications (Authorised by the Borough Treasurer)

There are no direct financial consequences in relation to this report. However,
the cost to the PCT of dealing with alcohol misuse is £31,500,000 per annum,
currently increasing by at least £500,000 a year.

Legal Implications (Authorised by the Borough Solicitor)

Legislation enabling councils to introduce local byelaws is contained in Section
235 of the Local Government Act 1972. This provision requires byelaws to be
made “for the good rule and government of the whole or any part of the
borough and for the prevention and suppression of nuisances therein”, and they
cannot be made for any purpose as respects any area if provision is made by,
or may be made under, any other enactment. Byelaws, once made by a local
authority, must be confirmed, before they are effective, and the confirming
authority in this context is the Secretary of State. Section 2 of the Local
Government Act 2000, often known as the “wellbeing” provision, also enables
local authorities to do things which are considered likely to achieve the
promotion or improvement of the economic, social or environmental well-being
of their area. In doing so, they must have regard to the Sustainable Community
Strategy which must be prepared under Section 4.

Concern related to alcohol misuse has led, apart from the work in Cheshire and
Warrington, to the Executive Board of the Association of Greater Manchester
Authorities (“AGMA?”) setting up a task and finish group and commissioning a
report on the possible implementation of a byelaw to impose a minimum unit
price for alcohol. As at November 2010, an interim report has been prepared,
and one of the issues covered is the scope which a byelaw in this context might
have, and enforcement issues.

Whilst there is considerable support for the introduction of minimum alcohol
pricing, it is important to ensure that the most effective legislating power is
used, in order to minimise the likelihood of successful challenge, and maximise
the ability to enforce it. Key issues to be taken into consideration if a byelaw is



8.4

8.5

9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

10.2

10.3

Page 33

considered are ensuring that any potential challenges of incompatibility with EU
law based on anti-competition are fully addressed, that sufficient research
supports the actual price level, and that the vital issue of enforceability is
addressed, since a byelaw in only some areas of the country leads to obvious
concerns in this regard. Given that the function of confirming a byelaw lies with
Central Government, through the Secretary of State, these issues would have
to be addressed both at the stage of making by the relevant local authorities,
and confirmation by the Secretary of State.

The work currently ongoing by AGMA as well as the Cheshire and Warrington
work seeks to address all these issues as well as to press for national
legislation.

As the problem which a byelaw would seek to remedy is not confined to the
region, but is country-wide, it is recommended that whilst the option of a
byelaw, and the extent of support for it continues to be explored, the enactment
of nationally applicable legislation by Central Government should also be an
important focus of the Council’s support and pressure.

Risk Management

The introduction of a minimum unit price is contentious and can lead to
negative press and public reaction. However, there is a growing lobby that is
supportive of the proposed measures and across the North West local
authorities are joining together to work towards a minimum unit price and a
bylaw.

Background and Options

“Cheap alcohol is killing people and it's undermining our way of life....
price and access are two crucial factors affecting alcohol consumption.
| recommend action taken on both but particularly on price. “

[Sir Liam Donaldson, Chief Medical Officer 1998-2010]

Support has been building for a minimum unit price for alcohol based
on the evidence that demonstrates the severe impact alcohol harm has
on communities and public services. Alcohol consumption in England
has almost tripled over the last 60 years. In 2009 nearly 1 million
people were admitted to hospital in the UK with alcohol related
problems (over 9000 in Central and Eastern Cheshire PCT), with
almost 7,000 deaths per year in England being directly related to
alcohol. In addition 45% of all violent crime is alcohol related. In 2009
there were over 2700 alcohol related incidents in Cheshire East
recorded by the Police, and nearly 25% of anti social behaviour
incidents involved alcohol.

There is a clear relationship between price and consumption of alcohol.
Price increases generally reduce heavy drinkers’ consumption by a
greater proportion than moderate drinkers, as heavy drinkers tend to
choose cheaper drinks. It also impacts significantly on harm to young



10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

Page 34

people by reducing access to ‘pocket money’ priced drinks. It should be
noted that Cheshire East is in the worst quartile nationally in relation to
the numbers of under 18s admitted to hospital because of an alcohol
specific cause.

A minimum unit price of 50p would reduce consumption of very cheap
alcohol amongst “problem” and younger drinkers. It would put a stop to
the 2 litre bottles of cider for £1.21 and 15 can packs of lager for £5.
However, because minimum price is not a tax, consumers could still
get a pint in the pub for £1.50 and a bottle of wine in the supermarket
for £4.50. A minimum unit price would reduce the impact of alcohol
harm on moderate drinkers, poorer communities, public services and
the alcohol retail trade. The implementation of a by law to enforce a
minimum unit price is one option to pursue.

A minimum unit price for alcohol is supported by the Government
Health Select Committee, Professor Dame Sally Davies (Chief Medical
Officer), Cheshire, Greater Manchester and Merseyside Directors of
Public Health, the National Institute for Clinical Excellence, the Faculty
of Public Health and Tesco. Over the course of 2010 there has been
significant high level media coverage regarding a minimum unit price.

In August 2010 the Prime Minister, David Cameron, stated “/ think
the idea of the councils coming together on this is a good one and we
will certainly look at it very sympathetically...Where there can be local
decisions we are very happy for that to happen” (Manchester Evening
News — 11" August 2010).

James Brokenshire (Parliamentary Under Secretary for Crime
Reduction, Home Office) also stated “If local circumstances point in
that direction, that’'s something local authorities might wish to explore”.
(Morning Advertiser — 15" September 2010).

As part of the Coalition Government’s commitments in its ‘Programme
for Government’ there have been national consultations regarding
alcohol taxation and pricing and also on reviewing the Licensing Act.
On 18™ January the Home Office announced plans to introduce a new
proposal that would prevent retailers from selling alcohol below the rate
of duty plus VAT.

Appendix B provides a summary of key information.

REGIONAL PROGRESS

10.10 The Cheshire and Warrington Health and Wellbeing Commission has

agreed to support a minimum unit price for alcohol and the use of a
bylaw to enforce this. It has agreed to establish a working group to
examine the implications of pursuing a bylaw approach and is working
with partners across the Northwest region to explore options. The
Liverpool City Region Safer, Healthier Communities Board has also



10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

Page 35

agreed a consistent approach, as has the Association of Greater
Manchester Authorities Executive.

The Cheshire and Warrington Leadership Board has given its support
to minimum pricing.

This is part of an overarching strategy to reduce alcohol related harm
(including crime and anti-social behaviour), to contribute to improving
health and to reduce health inequalities across the region. For
example, a Large Scale Change initiative has begun across the sub-
region, to bring organisations together to tackle the impacts of alcohol
related harm.

A minimum price per unit of alcohol would apply to both on and off
licences i.e. pubs and licensed premises, plus supermarkets and off
licences.

All Directors of Public Health in Cheshire and Warrington and the
Primary Care Trust Boards in Merseyside have supported in principle a
minimum unit price.

A Bylaw approach

10.15

10.16

In the North West there is potential to act collaboratively to implement a
bylaw which would introduce a minimum price. This would be most
effective if a significant number of local authorities across a coherent
geographic area agree their support for a bylaw. It is vital therefore that
there is strong democratic support for such an approach.

This would be in accordance with the “Well Being Power” (outlined in
Section 2 of the Local Government Act 2000) as it is an appropriate
response and a means of improving public health and public order at a
local level, where there is a shortfall in national legislation. In addition
Section 235 of the Local Government Act 1972 makes it possible for a
bylaw to be made “for the good rule and government of the whole or
any part of the area and for the suppression of nuisances therein.”

CHALLENGES TO MINIMUM PRICING

10.17

10.18

The legality of a local minimum price is untested, although the industry
or any opponent of such a scheme could not pursue a legal challenge
until a bylaw has been approved and implemented. If a local bylaw
was successfully challenged it would be likely to strengthen the case
for national legislation on pricing, although clearly the most effective
approach should be chosen from the outset.

Public messaging needs to be developed to raise awareness of the

benefits of a minimum unit price and the low impact on moderate
drinkers. The process that was undertaken in this respect with tobacco
legislation demonstrates that public opinion can be mobilised over time.



Page 36

11.0 Access to Information

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting the report
writer:

Appendix A - Letter of Support for Minimum Unit Pricing
Appendix B - Key Information Alcohol Harm and Minimum Unit Pricing

Name: Guy Kilminster

Designation: Head of Health and Wellbeing
Tel No: 01270 686560

Email: guy.kilminster@cheshireeast.gov.uk



Page 37
/

M

APPENDIX A

Letter to Members of Cabinet
Local Authorities in Cheshire & Merseyside

Re: Reducing Alcohol Harm — Minimum Unit Pricing

As Clinicians in Cheshire & Merseyside, we welcome the recent Government proposals to
introduce the ban on sales of alcohol below the rate of duty plus VAT, as an important first
move in the right direction. However, we would still recommend that steps be taken to pursue a
minimum price of 50p per unit as an integral part of a range of measures to tackle our rising
alcohol problem.

We know that politicians will be concerned about public opinion and the impact on people’s
pockets. However, they should also note that the public are very much aware of the effect of
pocket money prices on consumption. Recent Home Office Research (published 18 January
2011)1 showed that two-thirds of the public believe the amount of alcohol people drink in Britain
is out of control. The research also showed that 93% of heavier drinkers under the age of 35
say they have witnessed alcohol-related crime and disorder in the past 12 months.

The alcohol business continues to tell the Government that information is all that is necessary.
However as the Health Secretary, the Chief Medical Officer, the World Health Organisation and
the public have all recognised there is also a link between price, consumption and harm that
can no longer be ignored.

In terms of cost to a moderate drinker, the impact of 50p per unit would be minimal. Prices in
licensed premises would not be affected as the minimum price of a pint of lager for example
would be £1.50. For the take home market a 750ml bottle of wine (12%) would cost
approximately £4.50 and six 500ml cans of lager (4%) would cost roughly £6.

Currently alcohol is available in some outlets in Cheshire and Merseyside as cheap as 10p a
unit. Commonly supermarket brand cider is sold for under £1 per litre. With the introduction of
50p minimum unit price a litre bottle of cider (5.5%) could not be sold for less than £6.

Surveys in the North West have found that up to 45% of the public polled would support a
minimum unit price for alcohol, including in one survey 48% of young people. The support base
for minimum unit price has also increased from earlier surveys. Just this week, a flash poll was
conducted by the UK’s leading discount website and the results showed that two thirds of
Britons support the proposed plans for minimum pricing on alcohol; with the majority hoping that

' www.homeoffice.gov.uk/publications/alcohol/alcohol-pricing




Page 38

the plans will help tackle binge drinkingz. 94.4% of publicans indicate that supermarket price
promotions have adversely affected their trade and 90.7% of them would support a minimum
unit price>.

We understand the local authorities within Cheshire and Warrington will be taking papers to
their Cabinets to seek the endorsement of a minimum unit price of 50p and the agreement to
work together to explore the proposal of a bylaw.

We hope our support will strengthen the argument to pursue minimum unit pricing.
Yours sincerely

Professor Sir lan Gilmore — President, Royal College of Physicians & Consultant, The Royal
Liverpool & Broadgreen University Hospitals NHS Trust

Dr Steve Hood — Clinical Lead for Alcohol Services Aintree Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
Liverpool & member of Liverpool City Alcohol Strategy Group

Dr Paul Bowen — GP, Chair, Eastern Cheshire Commissioning Consortium

Dr Peter Enevoldson - Medical Director & Consultant Neurologist Walton Centre NHS
Foundation Trust

Dr Gordon Ramsden — Medical Director, Warrington & Halton Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
Dr Andrew Davies — GP, Chair, Warrington Health Consortium

Dr Andrew Wilson — Lead GP South Consortia (Cheshire East)

Dr Huw Charles-Jones — GP, Chair, Western Cheshire Health Consortium

2 www.alcohol-help.co.uk/two-thirds-of-britons-welcome-minimum-pricing-on-alcohol
3 Our Life, Manchester




Page 39

APPENDIX B

Briefing Paper
Alcohol Minimum Pricing

What is minimum pricing for alcohol?

Minimum pricing is a policy which sets a minimum price at which alcohol can be sold. The purpose of a
minimum price is to ensure that retailers cannot sell alcohol below a certain baseline cost.

Does the government plan to introduce minimum pricing for alcohol?

On 18 January 2011, the Home Office announced plans to introduce a new proposal which would
prevent retailers from selling alcohol below the rate of duty plus VAT. This would mean retailers could
not sell a 1 litre bottle of vodka (37.5 per cent abv) for less than £10.71 and a 440ml can of lager (4.2 per
cent abv) for less than £0.38. This equates to 21p per unit of beer.

Are these the right plans?

There is a clear relationship between price and the consumption of alcohol, and the Alcohol Health
Alliance is pleased to see that the government accepts cheap drink is the main driver of the health harm.

However, the proposed price floor of rate of duty plus VAT will impact on only a small fraction of special
offers and will have no meaningful impact on the health consequences of alcohol misuse.

Research conducted by the School of Health and Health Related Research found that if the minimum
price was set higher, at 50p per unit, it would reduce hospital admissions by approximately 100,000
each year with total cost savings for England of £7.4billion over ten years.

The School of Health and Health Related Research found that a minimum unit price of 50p would:

= Reduce consumption per drinker 6.9% on average saving around 100,000 hospital admissions
each year and 10300 fewer violent crimes.

= Total healthcare costs saved in England would be £66million in year one and £1.37 billion over
ten years.

= Total crime costs saved in England would be £49.6 million in year one and £413 million over ten
years.

= Total absence from the workplace costs saved would be £28.6 million in year one and
£238million over ten years.

= The total direct costs saved in England would be £793 million in year one and £7.4 billion over
ten years. '

Why do we need a minimum price for alcohol?

! Sheffield study



Page 40

The real price of alcohol has declined steadily over the past fifty years. Overall between 1980 and 2007
alcohol became 69% more affordable’. Liberalisation of licensing laws has led to alcohol being sold in
more places and for longer periods of time. The number of premises licensed to sell alcohol has
increased from 128, 054 in 1980 to 162,300 in 2008." The relaxation in access and availability of alcohol
has been seized upon more by the off-licence trade, particularly supermarkets who have responded by
offering deep discounts and promotions. The net effect of this is that alcohol is now available for as
little as 11 pence per unit in some outlets which is lower than bottled water.

Are people drinking more as a result of low prices?

In Britain, alcohol consumption rose by 121% between 1950 and 2000° and from 9.5 to 11.5 litres of
pure alcohol per adult between 1987 and 2007° so that the average consumption for every person over
age 15 is now 22 units (of 8 gram) per week. Latest statistics show that that there are around 2.6 million
higher risk drinkers in England and that , 31% of men reported drinking more than 21 units in an average
week and for women, 20% reported drinking more than 14 units in an average week’.

What are the costs and consequences of people drinking more?

The health and social harm caused by alcohol misuse affects individuals, families, friends, employers and
society more broadly as tax payers and citizens:

= |n 2007, in England, there were 6,541 deaths directly related to alcohol this has increased by 19%
since 2001. Of these alcohol related deaths, the majority (4,249) died from alcoholic liver disease.
On 28 January the Office for National Statistics published data showing that overall, the number of
alcohol-related deaths in the UK has increased since the early 1990s although fell slightly in 2009.2

= |tis estimated that the cost of alcohol related harm to the NHS in England is £2.7 billion in 2006/07
. 9
prices.

= The government estimates that 17 million working days are lost annually in England due to alcohol-
related sickness and that work related misuse costs the economy over £6.4 billion each year. °

= The government estimates that the human costs of alcohol related crime are over £4.7 billion."*
What impact will a minimum price have on reducing alcohol-related harm?
There is a clear relationship between price and the consumption of alcohol. Research shows that

alcohol responds to price increases like most consumer goods on the market, i.e. when other factors
remain constant an increase in the price of alcohol generally leads to a decrease in consumption. *

? Sheffield study
*1AS factsheet - Alcohol: Price, legal availability and expenditure
* DCMS Statistical Bulletin Alcohol, Entertainment and Late Night Refreshment Licensing England and Wales, April
2007 — March 2008
> Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy for England. Cabinet Office Strategy Unit 2004
® HM Revenue and Customs (2008) Alcohol Factsheet http://www.uktradeinfo.com/index.cfm?task=factalcohol
"Statistics on alcohol 2009, NHS Information Centre
8 http://www.statistics.gov.uk/cci/nugget.asp?id=1091
? Statistics on alcohol 2009, NHS Information Centre
12 Cabinet Office, 2003, Interim Analytical Report for the National Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy
Ibid
2 World Health Organisations (2007) Second Report of the Expert Committee on Problems related to Alcohol
Consumption’ Technical Report Series 944




Page 41

There is a growing body of evidence to show that price increases can have a dramatic effect on reducing
consumption and therefore harm.

Will a minimum price policy affect moderate drinkers more adversely?

There has been a suggestion that minimum price would penalise moderate drinks in fact the current
policy of low alcohol prices means that responsible drinkers are subsidising the behaviour of the 25% of
the population who are drinking at hazardous or harmful levels.The effect on moderate drinkers will be
very minimal because they consume lower amounts of alcohol. If a 50p minimum price were introduced
this would mean an increase in spending on alcohol of less than 23p per week per moderate drinker
where as a harmful drinker would pay an extra £3.13 per week. The effect of a minimum price on
reducing consumption would be much greater for underage and heavy drinkers, reducing their
consumption by 7.3% and 10.3% respectively.

In adverse economic conditions should we really be asking people to pay more alcohol?

The increase in cost to the moderate drinker is less that 23p per week which seems almost
inconsequential when compared with the overall cost of alcohol related harm to society as a whole.

Would taxation be a better option?

Taxation has been used by governments to increase alcohol prices with the aim of reducing
consumption. Recent research from Finland showed that when taxes on alcohol were reduced by an
average of 33% in 2004, researchers estimated a 10% increase in consumption and recorded a rise in
alcohol related mortality of 16% for men and 31% for women®. However taxation is not the most
effective policy lever as increases in alcohol duty have on the whole not been passed on to customers by
the large retailers including supermarkets — suppliers have been squeezed instead.

Does minimum pricing contravene UK competition law?

Fixing minimum drinks prices is possible under both UK and EU competition law, provided that minimum
prices are imposed on licensees by law, or by a public body exercising public functions imposed on it by
an enactment.

Does minimum pricing contravene EU trade law?

Minimum pricing for alcohol could be regarded as constituting a trade barrier contrary to EU free
movement of goods. However, both the European Court of Justice (ECJ) and the European Free Trade
Association (EFTA) have been prepared to prioritize health over trade concerns when considering
alcohol policies, providing certain conditions have been met*. If minimum pricing was challenged the
government could invoke a public health defense a principle established in European law by
demonstrating that its measures were proportionate and the only way to protect public health.

Does minimum pricing exist in other countries and is there evidence to show it has worked?

A number of counties across Europe including Belgium, France and Portugal and Spain have legislation
banning low cost selling™. Canada has a well established minimum pricing scheme. Social reference

3 (BMJ 2008; 337:a1504).

" Baumberg, B and Anderson, P (2008) Health, alcohol and EU law: understanding the impact of European single
market lawn on alcohol policies, European Journal of

Public Health, pp 392-398.

> Rand Europe, 2009, The affordability of alcoholic beverages in the European Union



Page 42

pricing currently operates in 8 out its 10 provinces and has been shown to reduce demand when it is
linked to alcoholic content.

What are the gains from a minimum price as a policy option?

Pricing policies can have a positive impact on reducing the health, crime and economic harm caused by
alcohol misuse. They can also be targeted to impact on those groups who drink the most without
penalising those who drink responsibly. A minimum price approach would also circumvent the off-trade
sector’s ability to absorb increases in alcohol taxation, and to use deep discounting and below cost sales.



Page 43 Agenda ltem 8

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 51

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 53 Agenda ltem 9

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 57

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	5 Key Decision 10/11- 66 Local Transport Plan - Implementation Plan
	LTP Implementation Plan

	6 Key Decision 10/11- 86 Alcohol Harm Reduction and Minimum Unit PrIcing
	Alcohol harm report Appendix A letter from clinicians to councillors 8 Feb 2011
	Alcohol Harm report Appendix B

	8 The Regeneration of Congleton Town Centre
	11-03-06_Congleton_Town Centre Plan

	9 Managing Workforce Change
	Appendix A~ wf change 11 April~sent290311


